
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PLANNING BOARD 
SPECIAL MEETING 

TUESDAY MARCH 17, 2015 
7:00 PM 

HOOD ROOM, MATTHEWS TOWN HALL 
 
 
 

     I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

    II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES of February 24, 2015 Meeting 
 

III. ZONING APPLICATION #2014-623, MARA, 1200 Block of S Trade Street, from RU and 
R-15 to R/I(CD) 

 
IV. ZONING APPLICATION #2014-624, Squires Realty/Woodies, 9601 Independence Point 

Pky, from B-1(CD) to B-H(CD)  
 
     V. ZONING APPLICATION #2015-625, LPA Crews LLC, 855 Sam Newell Rd, Change of I-

1(CD) Conditions to Add Churches as an Allowed Use 
 
    VI. CANCEL MARCH 24, 2015 REGULAR MEETING 
 
   VII. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PlBd ag 3-17-15 



 

 

 
 
 
 
MEMO 
 
TO:  Planning Board Members 
FROM: Kathi Ingrish 
DATE:  March 9, 2015 
RE:  March 17, 2015 Special Planning Board Meeting 

 
 
March is supposed to come in like a lion and go out like a lamb.  Let’s hope the “lamb” at the end of the month is true, 
knowing how volatile our spring weather can be at times.  Your Board set a special meeting date of March 17 to review 
and make recommendations on three zoning cases that are out of typical sequence.  These three zoning applications 
had their public hearings late in the month of February rather than on the usual second Monday of the month, triggering a 
need for your Board to schedule a special meeting date closer to the end of your 30-day window for evaluation.  This 
gave all three cases the opportunity to revise any portions of their plans based on comments received during or following 
the hearings.  One of the three, #2014-623 for MARA, also will be going to the Board of Adjustment on March 12 for 
some zoning variances, so we will be able to provide you with an update on their action at your meeting on the 17th.  
These three cases will then be able to return to Council for decision on March 23. 
 
The first of the three cases is for Arthur Goodman Park, owned and operated by Matthews Athletic and Recreation 
Association (MARA).  This property has been used by the nonprofit organization as a collection of ball fields for children’s 
team sports programs for fifty years, prior to being annexed into the Town limits and prior to Matthews having zoning 
rules.  We are unable to determine what improvements and expansions took place when on the site, since we have no 
site plans on file for any work there.  Planning staff has therefore taken the position that all existing facilities and 
improvements on-site either match with current zoning rules or are legally nonconforming.  As with any other outdated 
zoning classification (Conditional, O-15), the Rural RU district is no longer in the UDO so a more appropriate district 
designation of Residential/Institutional is being requested.  The specific land use category of “athletic or sports fields, 
ballfields, in a concentration of three or more, and similar outdoor physical recreation facility intended for use by teams of 
participants” is a permitted use in the R/I district.  Unlike small or more passive park uses, this use is not generally 
allowed in lower density residential settings.  The purpose statement for the R/I district explains this zoning designation 
“is established to allow complementary development of certain institutional or public uses in predominantly residential 
areas.  Uses in the District are generally considered compatible with residential growth but are of a significant size or 
scale which requires extra conditions in order to lessen their impact on neighboring residences.”   Planning staff is 
comfortable that this is the appropriate zoning designation. 
 
The second zoning case, 2014-624, is for a proposed reuse of a vacant structure at the corner of Independence Pointe 
Parkway and Sam Newell Road, the former consignment shop building.  Woodies Automotive wants to revise the open 
showroom interior space into 14 bays for general auto maintenance and service work, which does not include body 
repair or repainting activities.  This property may be significantly impacted by the future flyover of Sam Newell Road 
when Independence is converted to a limit access highway, now proposed to begin in 5 to 10 years.  This zoning request 
does not include any expansion of the existing building, but only a productive reuse of it, and is moving forward with the 
applicants’ full knowledge of NCDOT’s proposed work and schedule.  Changing from the existing B-1 to B-H is 
necessary due to the number of work bays proposed here.  Planning staff is comfortable that this is the appropriate 
zoning designation. 
 
The third request is for an existing multi-tenant business facility within a business park to add one new permitted use.  
The development area that includes this parcel was initially zoned I-1(CD) in 1992 and at that time a reduced I-1 list of 
uses was adopted for the overall area.  Revisions for this site were approved in 1994 and again in 2002.  The list of uses 
was not amended in 1994.  Some uses that were perceived as potentially competing with downtown, were boat or 
vehicle repair, or were oversized utility structures were stricken in 2002.  Planning staff is comfortable with the request. 
 
As always, please let one of us know if you find you will not be in attendance next Tuesday evening.  Also, feel free to 
call or e-mail any of us with questions at any time. 

PlBd ag 3-17-15 memo 



MINUTES 
PLANNING BOARD 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 24, 2015 
7:00 PM 

HOOD ROOM, MATTHEWS TOWN HALL 
 
 
PRESENT:  Vice-chair: Rob Markiewitz; Members Gary Turner, David Pratt, Steve Lee, Eric Welsh, and 

Michael Ham;  Alternate members Barbara Dement and David Barley; Town Attorney Craig 
Buie; Youth Voice Benjamin Dodson and Sarah Ward; Planning Director Kathi Ingrish, 
GIS/Planner II David Nelson, Zoning Administrator Mary Jo Gollnitz and Zoning 
Technician/Deputy Town Clerk Betty Lynd. 

 
ABSENT: Member Eric Johnson 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: Transportation Advisory Committee members George Sottilo, and Bill Stevens; Parks, 

Recreation & Cultural Resources Advisory Committee members Mary Ciminelli, Howie 
Labiner, Tom Williams, and Matt Jones; Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resources 
Director Corey King; Public Works Director Ralph Messera. 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Vice-chair Rob Markiewitz called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm.  
 
Mr. Markiewitz made a motion to appoint Barbara Dement as a voting member for this evening’s meeting. The 
motion was seconded by Steve Lee. The vote was unanimous. 
 
Mr. Markiewitz introduced David Barley as a newly appointed alternate member. 
 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES  
 
Gary Turner made a motion to approve the minutes of the January 6, 2015 meeting as submitted. The motion 
was seconded by Eric Welsh. The vote was unanimous.  
 
ELECTION OF CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR FOR 2015 
  
Barbara Dement nominated Rob Markiewitz for Chairman of the Planning Board. Mr. Markiewtiz respectfully 
declined the nomination, stating that he would be willing to continue his duties as Vice-chair. Ms. Dement made 
a motion to appoint Mr. Markiewitz to the Vice-chair position. The motion was seconded by Mr. Lee. The vote 
was unanimous. 
 
There was some discussion of who would be willing to take on the Chairman role. David Pratt nominated Mr. 
Lee as Chairman of the Planning Board. The motion was seconded by Mr. Markiewitz. The vote was 
unanimous. 
 
SCHEDULE SPECIAL MEETING TO REVIEW ZONING CASES 
 
Mr. Markiewitz explained that the Planning Board needed to set a special meeting date in March to review the 
three zoning cases presented at the Town Board meeting on February 23, 2015. 
 
Kathi Ingrish explained that the three possible Tuesdays would be the 3rd, 10th and 17th. The MARA 
representatives would be unavailable on the 10th and the 3rd would be very close to the Board of Adjustment 
meeting on March 5th. Ms. Ingrish stated that the 17th would be the best date for all parties if it was acceptable 
by the board. 
 
Mr. Turner asked Ms. Ingrish when the three zoning cases would return to the Town Board for a decision. Ms. 
Ingrish stated these cases would be decided on March 23rd. Mr. Turner asked if they chose the 3rd, which would 
be before the Town Board’s next scheduled meeting on March 9th, would the cases be decided on March 9th 
instead of March 23rd. Ms. Ingrish stated they would not. 



Planning Board Minutes 
February 24, 2015  

 

 

 2 

Mr. Lee asked if there were any cases scheduled for the Planning Board meeting on March 24th. Ms. Ingrish 
stated that there are no zoning hearings scheduled for March’s meeting, so this special meeting could be the 
board’s only meeting in March unless board members attend the March 23rd Town Board meeting to hear the 
final decisions on the three zoning cases. 
 
The board’s consensus was the special meeting date will be set for March 17th, 2015. 
 
OPEN SESSION TO INCLUDE PARKS, RECREATION & CULTURAL RESOURCES ADVISORY 
COMMITTEE AND TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 
Mr. Markiewtiz stated that the open session was based upon the feedback from sessions held by Town Council 
that the boards should share and talk about things going on to keep up transparency between boards. Ms. 
Ingrish explained that this was a perfect time to hold the open session because the Composite Bicycle and 
Pedestrian Plan would soon be presented to the public. 
 
PRESENTATION ON DRAFT COMPOSITE BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN PLAN 
 
GIS/Planner II David Nelson came forward to give presentation. The public hearing for the Composite Bicycle 
and Pedestrian Plan will be scheduled for April 13th, 2015. The Town Board’s decision date can be May 11th, 
2015. 
 
Mr. Nelson explained that the plan is a long-term planning initiative to ensure a complete pedestrian and bicycle 
network for the Town of Matthews. There are objectives to this plan. One objective is to update and build off of 
the Comprehensive Bicycle Plan which was approved in 2006. The new plan will expand to include a pedestrian 
network. A further objective is to standardize the terms and definitions between the different plans to ensure 
clarity and consistency. The composite plan needs to be a comprehensive plan that includes the aspects of all 
previous plans used. Staff would like to alleviate any conflicts amongst the plans in order to mesh them all into 
the one new plan. Once the plans have been meshed, staff can complete a gap analysis to identify areas where 
the plans do not link with each other. Once those are identified they can be created while current linkages can 
be strengthened. A final objective is to gauge the strength of the plan and measure improvements over time. 
 
Mr. Nelson stated this Composite Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan is a combination of previous plans. These include 
the Comprehensive Bicycle Plan, the Mecklenburg County Parks & Recreation Greenway Plan, the Carolina 
Thread Trail, the Comprehensive Transportation Plan, and other various small area plans and past rezoning 
petitions. These are pulled together into this master plan. 
 
Mr. Nelson stated that staff looked at the terms for facility types used within past plans. These terms were 
narrowed to seven terms: bike lanes, neighborhood signed routes, wide outside lanes, wide paved shoulders, 
greenways, multi-use paths, and sidewalks.  
 
Mr. Nelson continued discussing the past plans used to create the Composite Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan, 
giving their adoption dates and uses. Once all these past plans were combined, the next step was to update the 
master plan to alleviate conflicts. Mr. Nelson explained that the most common conflict was redundancy, meaning 
that more than one facility serving the same purpose was offered for the same corridor. Multiple facilities are not 
needed. One example of this is McKee Road. In this example, the Comprehensive Bicycle Plan recommended a 
wide shoulder, whereas the Comprehensive Transportation Plan recommended bicycle lanes. The resolution 
was that bicycle lanes provided a safer mode of transportation, therefore wide shoulders were removed. There 
were 16 instances of this type of conflict and the safety of users as well as accommodation of as many users as 
possible were used to decide which facility types to keep. There were two instances of needing to realign 
corridors due to external factors since the past plans’ adoptions. There were five instances of conflict which 
required changes to the facility type. For these changes, staff utilized the National Association of Transportation 
Officials guidelines to guide the placement of neighborhood signed routes. They were meant for low volume 
neighborhood roads. A specific example of this was Mount Harmony Church Road, which was changed from 
neighborhood signed routes to bike lanes. A final aspect of the fourth goal is eliminated projects. Mr. Nelson 
explained that the only two eliminated projects were the Arthur Goodman Park connector and the Hampton 
Green connector. The length of the path was cost prohibitive according to a corridor study completed in 2012 by 
Stewart Engineering. 



Planning Board Minutes 
February 24, 2015  

 

 

 3 

Mr. Nelson stated new projects and gap analysis, was the largest objective to complete. The first new project 
would be a connector from Barrington to the Four Mile Creek Greenway. This is due to Four Mile Creek 
Greenway’s expected expansion and the limited number of opportunities to connect to it. This project will serve 
more than 400 residents along Elizabeth Lane and Barrington Place. The second new project is the Brighton 
Park neighborhood signed routes. This is due to the fact that most entrances to greenways are connected to 
neighborhood signed routes which facilitates safe travel to neighborhoods. There will also be a new 
neighborhood signed route extended on Creekside Drive in the Windrow subdivision to complete the 
neighborhood signed route network. Neighborhood signed routes will be added to Greylock Ridge and Rockwell 
View drives in order to connect to the Four Mile Creek Greenway. Crossing John Street there would be a 
recommendation for a multi-use path on the future Greylock Ridge extension into the Family Entertainment 
District. This was based on the Wingate Commons rezoning petition. This recommendation will ensure that the 
multi-use path would extend to Independence Pointe Parkway. There are also neighborhood signed routes 
recommended for Somersby in the Elizabeth Lane area and Thornblade Ridge Road. Multi-use paths are also 
recommended at Mount Harmony Church Road and for a connection between Rice and Williams Roads. The 
final new project recommendation is the Windrow connector multi-use path. Due to the fact that this is an older 
subdivision, there are no pedestrian options such as sidewalks for transportation. The plan is to utilize an old 
trail for horse riding that is unused within the neighborhood. 
 
Mr. Nelson expanded upon the final objective which is to evaluate the effectiveness of this composite plan. 
Direct residential and commercial access to facilities and destination ratios were used to measure effectiveness. 
For each of these criteria, the new composite plan has increased effectiveness. 
 
There are several recommendations of the composite plan, the first of which is to install some pilot 
neighborhood signed routes. A second recommendation is to create benchmarks or goals to continue 
measuring effectiveness over the next five to ten years. Dirtways could be used as an inexpensive way to model 
future multiuse paths until more permanent ones could be installed. A further recommendation is to consider 
bike sharing stations as a way to encourage citizens to utilize the bicycle network. The final recommendation is 
to continue communication between Matthews and other municipalities. 
 
Mr. Markiewitz stated that he was impressed with the effectiveness measurements, but was confused on how 
staff would prioritize projects and obtain funding. He also asked for further clarification on the plans for 
communication between neighborhoods. Mr. Nelson stated that most of the plan implementation will be 
developer-driven, meaning that any future development projects proposed in areas that the plan covers would 
have to include the facilities desired by the composite plan. Mr. Markiewitz asked what would happen in the 
already existing neighborhoods. Mr. Nelson answered that regional coordination with the county would allow 
connections to the greenways as they are expanded. Neighborhood signed routes are fairly easy and 
inexpensive to install. Mr. Markiewtiz asked if there will be requirements for the neighborhoods to communicate. 
Mr. Nelson stated that the process for communication has not been established yet, but is certainly something 
the staff wants to create. 
 
Bill Stevens with the Transportation Advisory Committee asked if it would be better to just place signs within the 
established neighborhoods that would have short neighborhood signed routes such as Thornblade. Mr. Nelson 
stated that neighborhoods with many feeder streets would require more signage as opposed to Thornblade. Mr. 
Stevens also inquired if staff could envision bicycles on dirt paths. Mr. Nelson said this was certainly possible. 
 
Tom Williams with the Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources Advisory Committee asked if it was possible to 
bring other small cities such as Mint Hill or Stallings into the program. Mr. Nelson said there was not any 
outreach to the neighboring communities in the creation of the composite plan. Going forward with the plan, 
however, it would be advantageous to coordinate with the surrounding communities. 
 
Ms. Dement asked about the area at Sardis Plantation and Reverdy, stating that they have many homes in that 
area and run right down into the greenway. Mr. Nelson stated that they have common open space in Sardis 
Plantation that has already been identified as a connector in a previous plan. There is no connection that can be 
identified on Reverdy. 
 
Mr. Lee asked if a dirtway was used, what the timeline and funding plan was for expanding Four Mile Creek 
Greenway. Mr. Nelson stated that he did not have the figures on that project. 



Planning Board Minutes 
February 24, 2015  

 

 

 4 

Howie Labiner stated concern about the projects being developer-driven. This would cause smaller segments of 
the plan to be developed and cause lack of connectivity which would keep the public from becoming engaged 
for a while. Mr. Nelson said that unfortunately that is a possibility. He said that another possible way to 
implement the plan incrementally would be to have DOT help when they are completing roadwork in plan areas. 
Funding is also a major issue that keeps the plan from being implemented quickly in large areas. 
 
Mr. Stevens said it would be a good idea to run the plan past Ken Tippette who is the bicycle coordinator in 
Charlotte. He would be able to provide good feedback. He also stated that he believed the advantage of building 
out the thoroughfares was that the more paths are built, the more popular the transportation system will 
become. He suggested building the connectors first. Mr. Nelson agreed that the Comprehensive Transportation 
Plan did recommend multiuse paths along major thoroughfares. It provides the backbone to the networks. 
 
Ms. Dement stated that Eden Hall should be included. That developer did agree on the other side of Fullwood. 
Mr. Nelson explained that he did not address that project but that it was an approved zoning petition. It starts 
with the Village at Plantation Estates, extends down Fullwood Lane with a signalized crosswalk onto Eden Hall , 
and continues through ACTS property to Bubbling Well. 
 
Mr. Barley asked if the projects had been ranked. Mr. Nelson stated that they have not been ranked yet. It would 
be a difficult task with over 150 projects. 
 
Ms. Dement asked what the next steps would be. Mr. Nelson said perhaps a ranking of the projects would be in 
order. Mr. Markiewitz suggested that they be ranked by the areas we control versus ones we do not. Mr. Nelson 
said the areas we control are more tied to funding that we would have to provide. Establishing dirtways would be 
a way to show people the potential of the plan. 
 
Mr. Welsh asked how we go about corporate sponsorships programs for funding. Mr. Nelson said that would be 
something the staff would look into. 
 
Mr. Williams asked if the Town of Matthews will maintain dirtways. Mr. Nelson said he would assume that Parks 
and Recreation would determine how to maintain them 
 
Mr. Welsh suggested looking into a tourism grant such as the one provided to MARA. Mr. Nelson said he would 
look into it. 
 
Public Works Director Ralph Messera stated that the Transportation Advisory Committee worked hard with the 
Town staff on the Comprehensive Transportation Plan and there were some changes that Mr. Nelson brought 
up such as the multiuse paths on thoroughfares. He complemented Mr. Nelson on doing an excellent job on 
meshing the plans together. 
 
Mr. Nelson stated that any future comments were welcome via e-mail and that a copy of the draft plan is 
available on the Town’s website. 
 
Mr. Markiewitz asked if there would be an opportunity for broader sharing with the community. He stated it 
would be important to get the word out so that the plan doesn’t encounter future resistance from citizens in later 
stages. Mr. Nelson said that staff is looking into a public input session. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mr. Lee made a motion to adjourn the meeting. The motion was seconded by Mr. Markiewitz. The vote was 
unanimous. The meeting was adjourned at 7:55 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Betty Lynd, Zoning Technician/ Deputy Town Clerk 


